UNI TED STATES COURT OF APPEALS
For the Fifth Crcuit

No. 93-8310
Summary Cal endar

UNI TED STATES OF AMERI CA
Pl ai ntiff-Appellee,

VERSUS

CARL ODELL ECHARD
Def endant - Appel | ant.

Appeal fromthe United States District Court
for the Western District of Texas

(P 92 CR 99)
(February 17, 1994)

Bef ore THORNBERRY, DAVIS, and SMTH, C rcuit Judges.
THORNBERRY, Circuit Judge:”

Def endant - Appel | ant Carl Cdel | Echard challenges  his
conviction of being a felon in possession of a firearm and
ammunition, alleging that the evidence is insufficient to support
hi s know ng possession of the contraband. Finding no nerit to his

clains, we affirm

“Local Rule 47.5 provides: "The publication of opinions that
have no precedential value and nerely decide particul ar cases on
the basis of well-settled principles of |aw inposes needless
expense on the public and burdens on the legal profession.™
Pursuant to that Rule, the Court has determ ned that this opinion
shoul d not be publi shed.






Facts and Prior Proceedi ngs

On April 26, 1992, Echard was en route fromCaliforniato West
Virginia through Texas.! Echard was stopped for speeding by two
Texas Departnent of Public Safety troopers. Instead of i mediately
pulling over on the shoulder of the highway, Echard drove his
vehicle onto an exit ranp, continued up a slight incline to the top
of a hill to a crossover, and down the hill, bringing the vehicle
to a stop at the bottom of the hill. He imediately exited the
vehi cl e, stunbl ed and began swayi ng back and forth. The troopers
snel |l ed al cohol on his breath and, after perform ng intoxication
tests, subsequently arrested Echard for driving whil e intoxicated.
Rat her than |eaving his car on the highway, Echard chose to all ow
one of the troopers to drive his vehicle into town. Accordingly,
the trooper perfornmed an inventory inspection of the vehicle. The
inventory inspection revealed that Echard was carrying a .380
cali ber Jennings sem -automatic pistol and two boxes of .380
cal i ber ammuni ti on. The pistol was found in a duffle bag that
contai ned sone of Echard's clothing. The amunition was found in
a garbage sack that al so contained sone of Echard's clothing. The
trooper also found two ammuniti on magazi nes at the bottom of the
t runk.

Echard told the troopers that the pistol belong to his
girlfriend. The girlfriend, Judy Retter, testified that the pistol

did belong to her, and she often used Echard's vehicle. She

! Echard was traveling to West Virginia following a falling-
out with his girlfriend.



further testified that when she used Echard's vehicle, she kept the
pi stol and ammunition in the trunk of his car.

Echard was indicted and charged with being a felon in
possession of a firearm in violation of 18 U S. C 8§ 922(g)(1)
(Count One), and being a felon in possession of anmunition in
violation of 18 U. S.C. 8§ 924(e)(1) (Count Two). Subsequently, the
Governnent filed an enhancenent information because Echard had
three prior violent felony convictions. Echard went to trial
before a jury and was found guilty on both counts.? A Presentence
Report indicated that a guideline range of 210 to 262 nonths of
i nprisonment was warranted. The Governnent filed a reconmendati on
for a downward departure based on Echard's substantial assistance
in other cases. The district court granted the downward departure
and sentenced Echard to 180 nonths of inprisonnment on each count
with the sentences to run concurrently.?

Di scussi on

Echard contends that there was insufficient evidence to
support the two counts of possessing a gun and possessing
ammunition. Echard argues that the Governnent did not prove that
he know ngly possessed the gun and ammunition. Specifically, he

contends that there is insufficient evidence to support that he

2 Echard filed a notion to suppress the gun and the
ammunition, but followng an evidentiary hearing, the district
court denied the notion.

3 The statutory term of inprisonnent under 18 U. S. C.
§ 924(e)(1) is 15 years to life.

4



knew t he weapon and amunition were in the trunk.* 1n deciding the
sufficiency of the evidence, this Court determ nes whet her, view ng
the evidence and the inferences that may be drawn fromit in the
light nost favorable to the verdict, a rational jury could have
found the essential elenents of the offense beyond a reasonable
doubt. United States v. Pruneda- Gonzal ez, 953 F.2d 190, 193 (5th
Cr.), cert. denied, U S. , 112 S. C. 2952, 119 L.Ed.2d 575

(1992).

The essential elenents of possession of a firearm by a
convicted felon under 18 U S C. 8§ 922(g)(1) are: (1) know ng
possession of a firearm by the defendant; (2) the defendant was
previously convicted in a court for a crinme punishable by
i nprisonnment for a termin excess of one year; and (3) the firearm
possessed by the defendant was in or affecting commerce. United
States v. Dancy, 861 F.2d 77, 81 (5th Cr. 1988).

Echard's sole argunent is that the Governnent did not prove
that he actually or constructively possessed the gun and
ammunition. A person has constructive possession if he know ngly
has ownershi p, control or dom nion over theitemitself or over the
prem ses where the itemis |ocated. United States v. MKni ght, 953
F.2d 898, 901 (5th Gir), cert. denied, 112 S.Ct. 2975 (1992).
Constructive possession may be established with circunstantia
evidence. |d. This Court has not adopted a fixed rule regarding

constructive possession. Id. at 902. The Court instead engages in

4 Echard has not chall enged the district court's denial of his
nmotion to suppress.



a common-sense, fact-specific approach to each particul ar probl em
of constructive possession. |d.

The evi dence presented at trial showed that the gun was found
inthe blue duffle bag along with Echard's clothing. Additionally,
the ammunition was found in a garbage sack containing nore of
Echard's clothing. Echard' s girlfriend testified that she carried
the pistol either in her truck or in Appellant's car, dependi ng on
what vehicle she was driving, and that she had been driving his
vehicle on the day that she threw himout of her hone. She also
admtted that she could not renenber whether she had the pistol in
the trunk of Echard's car on the day that he left California. She
also testified that she had thrown Echard's clothes into the trash
bag and then into the trunk of his car on the day she threw him
out. As pointed out by the Governnent, if Echard's girlfriend had
| eft the gun and ammunition in the car or the trunk of the car, the
gun and ammuniti on woul d not have been found in the duffle bag or
gar bage sack contai ning his clothing unless she put the contraband
in the bag or sack. She did not so testify. Therefore, a jury
coul d have found beyond a reasonabl e doubt that Echard had pl aced
the contraband in the bags hinself at sone tine prior to his
arrest. Viewing the evidence presented with all inferences
reasonably drawn therefrom in the light nost favorable to the
Governnent, any rational trier of fact could have found that Echard
knew of the gun's presence in the trunk and therefore, know ngly

possessed the firearm and the anmuniti on.



Concl usi on
Based on the foregoing, we affirm Echard's conviction and

sent ence.

AFF| RMED.



